MARYLAND NATIONAL GUARD ARMORIES THEMATIC GROUP

FHR < 300 (11-78)

.United States Department of the Interior
Heritage Conservation and Recreation Service

" National Register of Historic Places -
Inventory—Nomination Form

See instructions in How to Complete National Register Forms
Type all entries—complete applicable sections

1. Name

historic Denton Armory

and/or common

2. Location

Maple Avenue and Randolph Street N/A_ notfor publication

street & number

city, town Denton N/A vicinity of congressional district ~ First
state Maryland code 24 county Caroline code 011
3. Classification
Category Ownership Status Present Use
____ district X public — X occupied ____ agriculture ___ museum
~ X building(s) ___ private ____ unoccupied —__ commercial — park
___ structure — both — work in progress _ educational —__ private residence

—_site Public Acquisition Accessible — entertainment —religious
- object — in process _ X yes: restricted — government — scientific

_ being considered —_yes: unrestricted industrial —_transportation

_X not applicable __ po X military ___ other:
4. Owner of Property
Contact: Col. Raymond Clift

name

State of Maryland Military Department

728-338 ext. 244

street & number

23] West Hoffman Street

city, town Baltimore

N/A_ vicinity of

state Maryland 21201

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc.

Caroline County Courthouse

sireet & number

Denton

Maryland 21629

city, town state
6. Representation in Existing Surveys
Maryland Historical Trust
—~igle Historic Sites Inventory has this property been determined elegible? __yes X no
date 1980 _ federal ___state ___county ___ local

depository for survey records

Maryland Historical Trust, 21 State Circle

city, town

Annapolis

state Maryland 21401

e




7. Descr IPtIOlI MARYLAND NATIONAL GUARD ARMORIES THEMATIC GROUP  CAR-2

Condition Check one Check one

—__excellent — deteriorated ____ unaltered _X_ original site N/A
X good —ruins _X_ altered ___moved date
— fair — unexposed

Describe the present and original [ known) physical appearance

The Denton Armory is a two story brick structure with full basement situated on the
southeastern edge of the town of Denton, at the corner of Maple and Randolph Streets.
Across Maple Street (to the west) is a large open space with playground, and the
surrounding area is given to mixed commercial and residential uses.

The Armory, completed in 1938 is oriented to the west. It is composed of one story,
one-bay side sections flankinga three-bay center section. The side sections are
identical and contain 6/4 casement windows under 6-pane horizontal strips. The windows
have no trim except narrow stone sills.

The second section of the front facade projects slightly from the side sections.
Strip buttresses with stonme caps punctuate the bays. The bays flanking the center
arched doorway contain windows at first floor level, 6/4 casement under a 6-pane hori-
zontal strip, with narrow stone sills. At second floor level are windows, also 6/4
casement with stone sills. The center doorway is flanked by piers projecting slightly
from the rest of the center.

The doorway block projects several inches from the rest of the facade center.
Wide double doors under a slightly recessed pointed brick arch are flanked by 2/4
casement windows at the first floor level. Two rows of brick corbelling cross above
the doorway. The corbelled section is surmounted by the letters "M N G" in gold
attached to the wall. A band of stone molding crosses the center section immediately
above the second floor windows.

Centered above the second floor window at second floor level are decorative slots.
The roofline above is flat and untrimmed.

A brief flight of cement steps leads to the doorway from the sidewalk, and a low
brick wall with cement trim lines the walkway to the street. The front walk along
Maple Street is lined with tall shade trees.

. The south and north sides of the center block are identical, with double 4/4
casement windows under 4-pane horizontal strips.

The rear one story drill hall over full basement is four bays long, with bays
separated by strip buttresses ending with stone caps above the level of the window tops.
The first floor windows are stationary panels of glass, four panes horizontally and 6
panes vertically with transom openings at their centers. The windows have stone sills.
At basement level are two small windows per bay. The hall roof is hipped shaped and
tiled. The north and south sides of the drill hall are identical except that the first
bay of the south side has a canopied and attractively landscaped ground floor walkway
leading to the basement entrance to the Caroline (County) Senior Center.

The five-bay rear wall of the drill hall is punctuated by strip buttresses with
stone caps and windows as noted for the side elevations. A flight of steps with iron
pipe railing leads to a double door entrance in the extreme southeast bay. At the
gsouthwest corner of the lot is a brick one story garage set inside a fenced triangular
motor compound.
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Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below
— prehistoric __ archeology-prehistoric ___ community planning ___ landscape architecture____ religion
__1400-1499 ____ archeology-historic — conservation — law —__science
—__1500-1599 ___ agriculture ____economics —literature — sculpture
16001699 _X_ architecture ___ education _X_ military _X_ social/
—1700-1799 ____art 2 ____engineering ____music humanitarian
- 1800-1899 ____ commerce ____exploration/settlement ___ philosophy — theater
_X 1900-1946 ___ communications — Industry ___ politics/government __ transportation

__ invention ____ other (specity)
Specific dates 1938 Builder/Architect Builder: ggﬁi‘;g?gd Engineering Corporat:
Statement of Significance (in one paragraph) Applicable Criteria: A, C

Appfgcable Exceptions: G

Significance Evaluated: state

The Denton, Maryland Armory is primarily significant for its association with the
reorganization and expansion of the National Guard system in the twentieth century. It
derives additional significance from its role as a social center for its community, a
function it has served continuously since its construction date. Architecturally, the
building embodies the distinctive characteristics of its type, including a T shaped
plan with a two-story front "head house" section and a one-story perpendicular "drill
hall" extending to the rear; its facade is detailed to recall Medieval fortifications,
with towers flanking the central entrance, crenellated parapets, and strip buttresses.
Although the Denton Armory is less than 50 years old, constructed in 1938, it is
exceptionally significant for its association with the distinguished contribution of
the Maryland National Guard in the second World War.

The Denton Armory, the ninth such structure to be built on Maryland's Eastern
Shore, was completed in October, 1938 at a cost of $50,000. The building was dedicated
May 30, 1939 to the uses of the 104th Quartermaster's Company of the Maryland National
Guard. As part of the 29th Division, the 104th shares in the honors bestowed upon the
Division at the close of World War II, mest notably the distinguished unit citation
and the French Croix de Guerre with Palm.

The requests for bids for construction of the Armory were published in the Caroline
Sun (now the County Record) beginning in April 1938. A $50,000 limit was set, allowing
-$45,000 for buildings costs and $5,000 for architectural work and furnishings. 1In
June of that year a construction contract was awarded to the Carlstrand Engineering

Corporation of Baltimore, who offered to complete the building by October 1938 for a
total of $43,000.

The Denton Armory has served many community purposes over the years. The Denton
unit of the National Guard has removed to a new armory on Route 404 between Denton and
Centrevill which it shares with that town's Guard unit. The entire building is now
occupied by Caroline County services. The basement level presently enjoys lively
occupation by the Caroline Senior Center which has renvoated the area to contain a
cafeteria and cheerful gave and meeting room. The first floor front is occupied by
the offices of the Caroline County Health Department. The gymnasium is heavily used
by Denton youth for basketball gaves. The second floor appears to be vacant.




9. Major Bibliographical References CAR-256
The Caroline Sun (now County Record), March 26, April 23, and June 11, 1938.
Horsey, Eleanor F. Origins of Caroline County,Maryland. Privately printed by the

author, 1974.
History of Caroline County, Baltimore Regional Publishing Company, 1971.

Yerrical files, Marvland Room, Enoch Pratt Free Library, Baltimore.
10. Geographical Data

Acreage of nominated property _0.860 acres

Quadrangle name __Denton, MD Quadrangle scale 1224000
UMT References
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Verbal boundary description and justification

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

state N/A code county code

state code county code

11. Form Prepared By

name/title Susan Moore, Historic Sites Surveyor

organization Maryland Historical Trust date 1980; revised 7/85
street & number 21 State Circle telephone  (301) 269-2438
city or town Annapolis — Maryland 21401

12. State Historic Preservation Officer Certification

The evaluated significance of this property within the state is:

—___ national _X_ state — local

As the designated State Historic Preservation Officer for the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 89—
665), | hereby nominate this property for inclusion in the National Register and certify that it has been evaluated
according to the criteria and procedures set forth by the Heritage Conservation and Recreation Service.

State Historic Preservation Officer signature F /¢ "/ ' o

STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER

title date

GPO 938 833
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Continuation sheet Denton Armory, Caroline Co. ltem number 10 Page 1

GEOGRAPHICAL DATA:

Verbal Boundary Description:

In the town of Denton, Caroline County:

PARCEL NO. 1. Lot No 21 is a corner lot on Maple Avenue, and has a frontage on
said Maple Avenue of 113 feet and of 20 feet, and running back a depth of 165 feet to
a 15-foot alley.

PARCEL NO. 2. Lot No. 22 has frontage on Maple Avenue of 50 feet and runs back
in parallel lines a depth of 165 feet to a 15-foot alley.

PARCEL NO. 3. Lot No. 23 on the above plat has a frontage on Maple Avenue of
50 feet and runs back in parallel lines a depth of 165 feet to a 15-foot alley.
PARCEL NO. 4. Lot No. 24 adjoins Lot No. 23 on Maple Avenue with a frontage on

said Avenue of 50 feet and running back in parallel lines a depth of 165 feet to a
15-foot alley.
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DENTON ARMORY

Denton

Public

The Denton Armory is a two-story brick structure with
full basement situated on the southeast edge of Denton. The
main feature of the facade is a corgelled, pointed arch door-
way. The structure emulates a medieval fortification.

The Denton Armroy cost $50,000, and was dedicated to
the uses of the 104th Quartermaster's Company of the Maryland
National Guard. The Carlstrand Engineering Corporation of
Baltimore was the building contractor.
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MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST ~ MAGT # 0602563813

INVENTORY FORM FOR STATE HISTORIC SITES SURVEY

BINAME

HISTORIC

Denton Armory
AND/OR COMMON

BALOCATION

STREET & NUMBER
Maple Avenue and Randolph Street

CITY, TOWN CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT
Denton — VICINITY OF First
STATE COUNTY
Maryland Caroline
EJCLASSIFICATION
CATEGORY OWNERSHIP STATUS PRESENT USE
__DISTRICT Z pusLIC X occupIiED — AGRICULTURE _MUSEUM
X-BUILDING(S) —PRIVATE -_UNOCCUPIED — COMMERCIAL __PARK
—STRUCTURE __BOTH —WORK IN PROGRESS __EDUCATIONAL __PRIVATE RESIDENCE
s —SITE PUBLIC ACQUISITION ACCESSIBLE __ENTERTAINMENT __RELIGIOUS
—OBJECT __IN PROCESS —YES RESTRICTED __GOVERNMENT __SCIENTIFIC
__BEING CONSIDERED —_YES: UNRESTRICTED —INDUSTRIAL __TRANSPORTATION
__NO EMILITARY __OTHER
EJ OWNER OF PROPERTY Contact: Col. Raymond Clift
NAME
State of Maryland, Military Department __Telephone #: 728-3388 X 244
STREET & NUMBER

231 W. Hoffman Street

CITY. TOWN sTate , zip code
- Baltimore — VICINITY OF Maryland 21204
[ LOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION by B B0

COURTHOUSE

S Folio #: 139
REGISTRY OF DEEDAETE: Garoline County Court House

STREET & NUMBER

CiTY TOWN STATE

Denton Maryland

LI REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS

TITLE

DATE

—FEDERAL _STATE __COUNTY __LOCAL
DEPOSITORY FOR

_ SURVEY RECORDS
CITY. TOWN

STATE




K2 DESCRIPTION k=256

CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE
—EXCELLENT —DETERIORATED —UNALTERED XORIGINAL SITE
X000 —RUINS X _ALTERED —MOVED DATE
—FAIR —UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Denton Armory is a two story brick structure with full basement situated on
the southeastern edge of the town of Denton, at the corner of Maple and Randolph
Streets. Across Maple Street (to the west) is a large open space with playground, and
the surrounding area is given to mixed commercial and residential uses.

The Armory, completed in 1938, is oriented to the west. It is composed of one
story, one-bay side sections flanking a three-bay center section. The side sections
are identical and contain 6/4 casement windows under 6-pane horizontal strips. The
windows have no trim except narrow stone sills.

The central section of the front facade projects slightly from the side sections.
Strip buttresses with stone caps punctuate the bays. The bays flanking the center
arched doorway contain windows at first floor level, 6/4 casement under a 6-pane hori-
zontal strip, with narrow stone sills. At second floor level are windows, also 6/4
casement with stone sills. The center doorway is flanked by piers projecting slightly
from the rest of the center.

The doorway block projects several inches from the rest of the facade center.
Wide double doors under a slightly recessed pointed brick arch are flanked by 2/4 case-
ment windows at the first floor level. Two rows of brick corbelling cross above the
doorway. The corbelled section is surmounted by the letters "M N G" in gold attached
to the wall. A band of stone molding crosses the center section immediately above the
second floor windows.

Centered above the second floor windows at second floor level are decorative
slots. The roofline above is flat and untrimmed.

A brief flight of cement steps leads to the doorway from the sidewalk, and a
low brick wall with cement trim lines the walkway to the street. The front walk along
Maple Street is lined with tall shade trees.

The south and north sides of the center block are identical, with double 4/4
casement windows under 4-pane horizontal strips.

The rear one story drill hall over full basement is four bays long, with bays
separated by strip buttresses ending with stone caps above the level of the window tops.
The first floor windows are stationary panels of glass, four panes horizontally and 6
panes vertically with transom openings at their centers. The windows have stone sills.
At basement level are two small windows per bay. The hall roof is hipped shaped and
tiled. The north and south sides of the drill hall are identical except that the
first bay of the south side has a canopied and attractively landscaped ground floor
walkway leading to the basement entrance to the Caroline [County] Senior Center.

The five-bay rear wall of the drill hall is punctuated by strip buttresses with
stone caps and windows as noted for the side elevations. A flight of steps with irop
pipe railing leads to a double door entrance in the extreme southeast bay. At the
southwest corner of the lot is a brick one story garage set inside a fenced triangular ¢
motor compound.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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SIGNIFICANCE
PERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW

—PREHISTORIC —ARCHEULUGY-PREHISTORIC __COMMUNITY PLANNING — LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE —RELIGION

—.1400-1499 —ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC __CONSERVATION —LAW . SCIENCE

—1500-1599 —AGRICULTURE —ECONOMICS — LITERATURE —SCULPTURE
—1600-1699 X ARCHITECTURE __EDUCATION EMILITARY ZSOCIALHUMANITARIAN
—1700-1799 —ART __ENGINEERING —MusIC —THEATER
—1B00-1899 —.COMMERCE __EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT —PHILOSOPHY _TRANSPORTATION
X .1900- —COMMUNICATIONS —INDUSTRY —POLITICS/GOVERNMENT __OTHER (SPECIFY!

__INVENTION
SPECIFIC DATES 1938 BUILDER/ARCHITECT Builder: Carlstrand Engineering

Corporation, Baltimore

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Denton Armory, the ninth such structure to be built on Maryland's eastern
shore, was completed in October, 1938 at a cost of $50,000. The building was dedicated
May 30, 1939 to the uses of the 104th Quartermaster's Company of the Maryland National
Guard. As part of the 29th Division, the 104th shares in the honors bestowed upon the
Division at the close of World War II, most notably the distinguished unit citation and
the French Croix de Guerre with Palm.

The requests for bids for construction of the Armory were published in the Caroline
Sun (now the County Record) beginning in April 1938. A $50,000 limit was set, allowing
$45,000 for building costs and $5,000 for architectural work and furnishings. In June
f that year a construction contract was awarded to the Carlstrand Engineering Corpora-
tion of Baltimore, who offered to complete the building by October 1938 for a total of

$43,000.

—

The Denton Armory has served many community purposes over the years. The Denton
unit of the National Guard has removed to a new armory on Route 404 between Denton and
Centreville which it shares with that town's Guard unit. The entire building is now
occupied by Caroline County services. The basement level presently enjoys lively oc-
cupation by the Caroline Senior Center which has renovated the area to contain a cafeteria
and cheerful game and meeting rooms. The first floor front is occupied by the offices of
the Caroline County Health Department. The gymnasium is heavily used by Denton youth for
basketball games. The second floor appears to be vacant.

RECOMMENDATION: Continued mixed-use as senior center, County offices and youth recreation
hall. This is a highly successful cornversion from military to community use and could

be used as a model for other armories where such conversion is contemplated. NOTE: Serious
leaks in the gymnasium roof threaten the integrity of the structure and pose a hazard to
the many active young people and elderly who utilize the building daily.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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EIMAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES R
The Caroline Sun (now the County Record), March 26, April 23, and June 11, 1938.
Horsey, Eleanor F. Origins of Caroline County, Maryland. Privately printed by the
author, 1974.
History of Caroline County, Baltimore Regional Publishing Company, 1971.
Vertical files, Maryland Room, Enoch Pratt Free Library, Baltimore.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY

[JGEOGRAPHICAL DATA

ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY 0,860

Quadrangle name: Denton Quadrangle scale: 1:24000

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

See Continuation Sheet #1

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE COUNTY
STATE COUNTY i
FORM PREPARED BY
NAME / TITLE
Susanne Moore, Historic Sites Surveyor
ORGANIZATION DATE
Maryland Historical Trust July, 1980
STREET & NUMBER TELEPHONE
269-2438

CITY OR TOWN STATE

Annapolis, Maryland 21401

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,

1974 Supplement.

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe-
ment of individual property rights.

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 267-1438
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CONTINUATION SHEET # 1 ITEM 10 PAGE 1

Denton Armory
Denton, Maryland

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

In the town of Denton, Caroline County:

PARCEL NO. 1. Lot No. 21 is a corner lot on Maple Avenue, and has a
frontage on said Maple Avenue of 113 feet and of 20 feet, and running back a depth of
165 feet to a 15-foot alley. .

PARCEL NO. 2. Lot No. 22 has a frontage on Maple Avenue of 50 feet and runs
back in parallel lines a depth of 165 feet to a 15-foot alley.

PARCEL NO. 3. Lot No. 23 on the above plat has a frontage on Maple Avenue
of 50 feet and runs back in parallel lines a depth of 165 feet to a 15-foot alley.

PARCEL NO. 4. Lot No. 24 adjoins Lot No. 23 on Maple Avenue with a frontage
on said Avenue of 50 feet and running back in parallel lines a depth of 165 feet to a
15~-foot a-ley.
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Denton Armory
Denton, Maryland

98/139
6/21/1928
Deed

CHAIN OF TITLE

PAGE 2

From the County Commissioners of Caroline County to the
State of Maryland

Consideration:

$5 in fee simple
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‘Denton Armory CAR-256
Caroline County, Maryland

photo: Susanne Moore

-neg loc: Md Hist Trust, Annapolis, Md
July 1980
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Denton Armory CAR=-256
Caroline County, Maryland

photo: Susanne Moore

neg loc: Md Hist Trust, Annapolis, Md
July 1980
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